
TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2013 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   

 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
August 20, 2013, Regular Meeting 
August 20, 2013, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 17, 2013, AGENDA  13 

5:35 4  INTERGOVERNMENTAL RETREAT DISCUSSION MR. PHIL TREW 15 

5:40 5  SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 
A. Out-of-State Travel Request 
B. Vehicle Bid Requests 

 
CAPTAIN AL REED 
CAPTAIN KELLY REDMON 

 
19 
25 

5:45 6  GREEN VALLEY COMMUNITY PARK, INC., REQUEST FOR AMENDMENTS 
IN TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY GRANTS 

MS. JANICE CARROLL 27 

5:50 7  SOCIAL SERVICES’ OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST MR. JIM ATKINSON 37 

5:55 8  REQUEST TO APPLY FOR A GRANT FROM THE FOUNDATION FOR  
RURAL SERVICE 

MR. JIM HAMILTON 55 

6:00 9  PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE 
FOLLOWING: 

A. Watauga County Library’s Request To Name A Meeting Room 
In Memory Of Ms. Evelyn Johnson 

B. Proposed Amendments to the Ordinance To Regulate Signs In 
Watauga County 

C. Proposed Amendments to the Following Ordinances: 
1. Foscoe-Grandfather Community Zoning Ordinance 
2. Valle Crucis Historic District Ordinance 
3. Ordinance to Regulate Electronic Access Gates for Gated 

Communities 
4. Ordinance to Regulate Wireless Communications Towers 
5. Water Supply Watershed Protection Ordinances 

 
 
MS. MONICA CARUSO 
 
MR. JOE FURMAN 
 
MR. JOE FURMAN 
 

 
 

59 
 

71 
 

85 

6:15 10  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 

MR. LARRY WARREN  
105 
106 

6:20 11  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Buyer Agency Agreement & Commission Agreement 
B. Proposed Bethel Convenience Center Lease Agreement 
C. Boards & Commissions 
D. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
107 
119 
127 
129 

 

6:25 12  PUBLIC COMMENT  132 

7:25 13  BREAK  132 

7:30 14  CLOSED SESSION:  Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3)  132 

7:45 15  ADJOURN   

 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
August 20, 2013, Regular Meeting 
August 20, 2013, Closed Session Minutes 
 
 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 20, 2013 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
August 20, 2013, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan Miller, Chairman 

David Blust, Vice-Chairman 
    Billy Kennedy, Commissioner 

John Welch, Commissioner 
    Perry Yates, Commissioner 

Stacy Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:31 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Chairman Miller led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the August 6, 2013, regular meeting 
minutes. 
 
The following two corrections were requested (deletions struck-through and additions in bold 
italic): 
 

Chairman Miller Vice-Chairman Blust called for additions and/or corrections to the 
August 6, 2013, agenda. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Bluest Blust, moved to appoint Jon 
Tate as a regular member on the Boone Planning Commission. 
 

 VOTE:  Aye-4 
        Nay-0 
        Absent-1(Miller) 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the August 6, 
2013, regular meeting minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

DRAFT 
091713 BCC Meeting

2



 
Chairman Miller tabled action for the August 6, 2013, closed session minutes until after the 
meeting as there were amendments to review during closed session. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the August 20, 2013, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to remove the Out-of-State Travel Request from the agenda 
per the Sheriff and to add a public hearing request from the Planning and Inspections 
Department. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the August 20, 
2013, agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

BOARD OF EDUCATION’S REQUEST FOR LOTTERY FUNDS 
Ms. Ly Marze, Watauga County Schools Finance Director, presented a request for approval of 
five Educational Lottery Fund applications in which a total of $248,600 was sought for various 
elementary school capital improvement projects as listed below: 
 

 Replace the boiler at Hardin Park School as a result of problems that surfaced to the hot 
water delivery system in a current project in the amount of $43,000 with the project 
estimated to begin in August 2013 and be completed by September 2013.  This amount 
added to the original requested amount of $35,000 brings the project total to $78,000. 

 
 Upgrades to cafeteria equipment at Hardin Park, Parkway, Mabel, and Green Valley 

Schools in the amount of $37,500 with the project estimated to begin in September 2013 
and be completed by May 2014. 

 
 Replacement of T-12 lights with energy efficient T-8 lights at Mabel School in the 

amount of $30,000 with the project estimated to begin in November 2013 and be 
completed by June 2014. 

 
 Continuation of drop ceiling installation to renovate existing ceilings that are cracking 

and peeling at Blowing Rock School in the amount of $10,000 with the project estimated 
to begin in November 2013 and be completed by January 2014. 

 
 Installation of security measures at the main entrances of all school buildings for school 

safety in the amount of $89,700 with the project to begin in November 2013 and be 
completed by June 2014.  

 

091713 BCC Meeting

3



 Replacement of worn and torn carpet and floor tiles in classrooms and school buildings in 
the amount of $38,400 with the project estimated to begin in November 2013 and be 
completed by January 2014. 

 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the submission of 
the Educational Lottery Fund applications as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

WATAUGA COUNTY LIBRARY’S REQUEST TO NAME A MEETING ROOM IN 
HONOR AND MEMORY OF MS. EVELYN JOHNSON 
Ms. Monica Caruso, Watauga County Librarian, presented a request to name a meeting room in 
the Watauga County Library the “Evelyn Johnson Meeting Room.”  Ms. Johnson worked for the 
Watauga County Library for over 30 years. 
 
Ms. Caruso requested the Board waive the stipulation requiring that the individual for which the 
room/facility would be named to be deceased for one (1) year as Ms. Johnson passed away in 
January 2013.  Ms. Caruso stated that Watauga County Library would like to hold a dedication 
ceremony prior to summer residents leaving for the winter and requested a public hearing be 
scheduled, as required by policy, for the September 17, 2013, meeting. 
 
The County Attorney stated that the Board could waive requirement for a one (1) year waiting 
period, per the naming policy, but would need a unanimous vote to schedule a public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to schedule a public hearing on 
Tuesday, September 17, 2013, at 6:00 PM for the consideration of naming the meeting room in 
the Watauga County Library the Evelyn Johnson Meeting Room. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 
 

Ms. Caruso introduced Ms. Jane Blackburn, the new Regional Librarian, and invited the public 
to a reception in her honor which will be held on September 5, 2013, from 12:00 to 1:00 P.M. 

PROJECT ON AGING’S REQUEST TO ACCEPT THE 2014 SENIOR’S HEALTH 
INSURANCE INFORMATION PROGRAM (SHIIP) GRANT/CONTRACT 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Director of Project on Aging (POA), requested the Board accept the FY 
2014 grant/contract for the Seniors’ Health Insurance Information Program (SHIIP).  The 
proposed grant was in the amount of $2,767 and required no County funds.  If approved and 
accepted, the funds would be used to provide assistance and outreach to low-income citizens. 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

4



County Manager Geouque stated that he signed the agreement which had been mailed, due to 
time constraints regarding the postmark deadline; however, should the Board not approve and 
accept the funding, the agreement could be withdrawn. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve and accept the 
Seniors Health Insurance Information Program (SHIIP) grant/contract in the amount of $2,767 as 
presented by Ms. Boitnotte. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

BID AWARD FOR NEW TRASH TRUCK 
Mr. J.V. Potter, Director of Operations Services, presented the following bids for a new front 
loading trash truck: 
 

Vendor Bid Amount 
Nu-Life Environmental $259,892.00 
Advantage Truck Center $244,898.28 
Carolina Environment $221,501.00 
Transource $217,985.00 

 

Carolina Environmental was the lowest responsive bidder as Transource’s bid was non-
responsive in that the vehicle specified did not meet bid specifications with regards to engine 
horsepower and torque which is critical for these vehicles to operate properly in the mountain 
terrain.  Therefore, Mr. Potter requested the Board award the bid to Carolina Environmental in 
the amount of $221,501. 
 
The County Manager stated that funds were budgeted in the Sanitation Department for this 
purchase. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to reject Transource’s bid as it 
was non-responsive and to accept the lowest responsive bid from Carolina Environmental in the 
amount of $221,501 for a new front loading trash truck as presented by Mr. Potter. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
At 5:49 P.M., by unanimous consensus, the Board agreed to proceed with agenda items listed 
after the public hearings which were scheduled to start at 6:00 P.M. 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-341600 US DOJ Drug Court Grant  $65,509 
105890-469851 Blue Ridge Mediation Drug Court $65,509  
 

091713 BCC Meeting

5



 

The amendment would reallocate the grant award from the US Department of Justice for drug 
court services contracted with Blue Ridge Mediation and Restorative Justice.  The County match 
was present in the budget. 
 

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented by Ms. Pierce. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS REQUEST FOR A PUBLIC HEARING 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, requested a public hearing be scheduled to 
consider amendments to the County Sign Ordinance as well as to several other ordinances that 
have been affected by recent legislation (Session Law 2013-126) which will take effect 
October 1, 2013.  The affected ordinances were Foscoe-Grandfather Zoning Ordinance, Valle 
Crucis Historic District Ordinance, Gated Communities Ordinance, Wireless Communications 
Towers Ordinance, Watershed Protection Zoning Ordinance.  Due to the session law becoming 
effective October 1, Mr. Furman requested the hearing be scheduled for the September 17 
meeting.  The Planning Board has recommend approval of each of these ordinances as amended. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to schedule a public hearing 
on September 17, 2013, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen comment on proposed amendments to the 
Foscoe-Grandfather Zoning Ordinance, Valle Crucis Historic District Ordinance, Gated 
Communities Ordinance, Wireless Communications Towers Ordinance, Watershed protection 
Zoning Ordinance and Sign Ordinance as requested by Mr. Furman. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Resolution Establishing the Watauga County Department of Social Services 

Advisory Board 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that at a previous meeting the Social Services Board was 
abolished.  At that time the Board directed the County Attorney and Manager to draft a 
resolution establishing a Social Services Advisory Board.  The County Manager presented the 
proposed resolution for consideration which specified the following be appointed to the initial 
Advisory Board:  Mr. Nathan Miler as the County Commissioner/Manager Representative, Ms. 
Audrey Tate (term to expire August 30 2014), Ms. Mary Moretz (term to expire August 30, 
2015), Mr. Tom Trexler (term to expire August 30, 2016), Ms. Sharon Brientenstein (term to 
expire August 30, 2017).  The County Manager stated that Mr. David Turlington was also 
willing to serve if so appointed. 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

6



Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to deny the resolution and 
reinstate the previous Board. 
 
County Attorney Eggers asked for clarification regarding if the “previous Board” was the Board 
being appointed by the State and Commissioner Welch stated that it was. 
 
Chairman Miller ruled the motion out-of-order because the appointing authority of the Advisory 
Board was not up for consideration. 
 
Therefore, Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to deny the 
resolution as presented. 
 
After further discussion, Commissioner Yates called for the question and the following vote was 
taken:  

VOTE: Aye-2(Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 

 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented. 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 
 Nay-2(Kennedy, Welch) 
 

 B. Appointment of North Carolina Association of County Commissioners (NCACC) Annual 
Conference Voting Delegate 

 

County Manager Geouque stated that the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' 
(NCACC) Annual Conference was scheduled for August 22-25, 2013, in Guilford County.  Each 
county in attendance was required to select a voting member for representation at the annual 
business meeting which is conducted as a part of the conference.  Submission of the voting 
delegate was due August 9, 2013.   
 

Board members were not available to attend the Annual Conference; therefore, a voting delegate 
was not appointed. 
 

[Clerk’s Note:  As it was after 6:00 P.M. at the conclusion of the above agenda item, the Board 
proceeded with the scheduled public hearings and then continued with Miscellaneous Administrative 
Matters at the conclusion of the three public hearings.] 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE FOLLOWING: 

A. The Board’s Request to Rename the Hwy 421 Bridge Over The South Fork of The New 
River In Memory of Deputy Sheriff William Ronald Mast, Jr. 

 

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to declare the public hearing 
open at 6:03 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the Board’s request to rename the Hwy 421 
bridge over the South Fork of the New River in memory of Deputy Sheriff William Ronald 
Mast, Jr. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

091713 BCC Meeting

7



 
Chairman Miller stated that the public hearing was scheduled to allow citizen comment on the 
naming of the Highway 421 Bridge over the South Fork of the New River in memory of Deputy 
Sheriff William Ronald Mast, Jr. as required by the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (NCDOT).  Chairman Miller stated that the Town of Boone was considering a 
like resolution and upon adoption of both resolutions, staff would forward the application for the 
naming of the Bridge to the NCDOT for consideration. 
 
Chairman Miller recognized the widow, father, and mother of Deputy Sheriff William Ronald 
Mast, Jr. who were present and expressed their appreciation for this act of dedication. 
 
There being no public comment, Chairman Miller declared the public hearing closed at 
6:05 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to adopt the proposed 
resolution as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
B. New Road Names 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to declare the public hearing 
open at 6:07 P.M. to allow citizen comment on new road names as required by North Carolina 
General Statute 153A-239.1. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Mr. Jeff Virginia reviewed the process for which private and public road names were chosen and 
presented the following for consideration. 
 
New Road Names: 
Sky Vista 
Willow Ridge Lane 
Eggers Hollow 
Smokey Bear Lane 
Twain Place 
Jefferson Court 
Mt. Jefferson View Court 
Ossorio Court 
Ramsey Court 

 
Stone Court 
Stone Mountain Bluffs Parkway 
Snowy Doe Drive 
Willies View 
Mountain Bike Way 
Boone Circle 
Fallview Lane 
Makers Lane 
Mesa Circle 

 
Parkwood Circle 
King Arthurs Court 
Spencer Miller Road 
Parkway View Drive 
Hidden Vista 
Upper Cascade 
Shooters Ridge Drive 
Bear Ridge Trail 
West Ridge View 
 

Existing Road Name Changes:  
From Twin Filly to Twin Filly Peak 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

8



There being no public comment, Chairman Miller declared the public hearing closed at 
6:07 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the proposed 
resolution as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. The Board’s Intent to Purchase Property on NC Hwy 194 North for the Potential 

Development of a Business Park 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to declare the public hearing 
open at 6:11 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the Board’s intent to purchase property on NC 
Hwy 194 for the potential development of a business park. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Chairman Miller stated that per North Carolina General Statutes 158-7.1, a public hearing was 
scheduled to allow citizen comment on the potential purchase of the property on NC Highway 194 
North for a business/commerce park.  The due diligence period for the 194 property ends September 3, 
2013 which was the date of the next regularly scheduled Board meeting.  Chairman Miller stated that 
each speaker would have three (3) minutes to share their comments and stated that comments should 
not include personal attacks and should be limited to the pros and cons of purchasing the property. 
 
Mr. Joe Furman, Economic Development Director, reviewed the details regarding the purchase 
agreement, closing date, and infrastructure needed for a business park.  Mr. Furman stated that the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation was willing to work with the County on improvements to 
Hwy 194, natural gas was 3 miles away from the property, and cable and fiber optics were available to 
the rear of the property.  Mr. Furman stated that the Economic Development Commission had been 
conducting an ongoing search for property on which to locate a business park 
 
The following individuals addressed the Board regarding the proposed purchase of property: 
 
Lauren Waterworth 
Liz Riddick 
Derek Moretz 
Mike McKee 
Susan Jones 
Nancy Reigel 

Pam Kidder Ashley 
Ingrid Kraus 
Janna Lyons 
Sheri Clark 
Noelle Austin 
Keith Honeycutt 

Bill Moretz 
Jim Hamilton 
Charlie Wallin 
Pam Williamson 
John Drake 
Deborah Greene 
 

There being no further public comment, Chairman Miller declared the public hearing closed at 
7:10 P.M. 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

9



After each Board member shared their comments regarding the property, Vice-Chairman Blust, 
seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to cancel the County’s contract with Ms. Deborah Earp 
Greene for the purchase of the property in Deed Reference Book 1524, Page 211. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-2(Miller, Yates) 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS (CONT.) 
C. September Meeting Schedule 
 
County Manager Geouque requested direction regarding the September meeting schedule stating 
that the Board had historically cancelled the first regular meeting due to the Labor Day Holiday. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to cancel the first regular Board 
of Commissioners meeting in September due to the Labor Day Holiday. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
D. Boards & Commissions 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that one Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) Alternate position 
remained to be filled on the Town of Boone Board of Adjustment; however, recommendations 
had not been received from the Town. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the AppalCART Board had an at-large seat which would 
become vacant effective August 26, 2013.  That Board had also received a letter from Ms. Elaine 
Norris announcing her resignation from the Board as the human service agency representative.    
AppalCART had recommended that Ms. Kedith England be appointed to fill the at-large seat and 
a Volunteer Application had also been received by Ms. Wanda Miller who was interested in 
serving on the AppalCART Board as an at-large representative.  The County Manager stated that 
current AppalCART at-large representative, Ms. Angie Boitnotte, qualified to serve as a human 
service agency representative due to being the Director of Watauga County’s Project on Aging.  
Therefore, staff recommended changing Ms. Boitnotte’s designation on the AppalCART Board 
to human service agency representative thereby leaving two at-large seats available for 
appointment. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to waive the second reading 
and appoint, to the AppalCART Board, Ms. Angie Boitnotte as the human service representative 
and appoint both Ms. Kedith England and Ms. Wanda Miller as at-large representatives. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 

091713 BCC Meeting

10



Mr. Gary Childers’ term to the Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute Board 
expired June 30, 2013.  Mr. Childers has expressed his willingness to continue serving if 
reappointed.   
 
The above was a first reading and, therefore, no action was required nor taken. 
 
 
E. Announcements 
 
County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

 The High Country Council of Governments’ Annual Banquet was scheduled for Friday, 
September 6, 2013, at Linville Ridge.   

 
 The Hunger and Health Coalition has invited Board members to “Save the Date” of 

October 12, 2013, at 9:00 A.M. to join their First Annual Homecoming Run for Hunger.  
The 5K run/walk will benefit the Hunger and Health Coalition. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Ms. Deborah Greene shared comments regarding Hwy 194 and plans for a business park. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 7:50 P.M., Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to resume the open meeting at 
8:15 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 

ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the August 6, 
2013, closed session minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

091713 BCC Meeting

11



ADJOURN 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
8:15 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
 Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

091713 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 17, 2013, AGENDA 
 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RETREAT DISCUSSION 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Phil Trew, High Country Director of Planning, will request direction from the Board on how 
to proceed with future Intergovernmental Retreats.  Mr. Trew has been made aware of the 
dissatisfaction with the retreats as presently conducted. 
 
Mr. Trew will request the Board appoint two elected officials to serve on a committee consisting 
of other elected officials from the entity’s currently involved in the retreats.  This committee 
would then meet with a professional facilitator to review and recommend changes to the retreat 
process.  It is my understanding that there would be a cost associated with the professional 
facilitator but at this time no figures were available.  A similar process was utilized initially 
which lead to the current Intergovernmental Retreats.  The retreats were held quarterly and now 
have been reduced to twice a month. 
 
Direction from the Board is requested. 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

15



091713 BCC Meeting

16



091713 BCC Meeting

17



Blank Page 
 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

18



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 
A. Out-of-State Travel Request 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Captain Al Reed will request Board approval for Detective Patrick Anderson to attend the 
NPLEX leadership conference in Louisville, Kentucky October 28th through 30th, 2013.  Costs 
incurred to the County will be meals, fuel, and personnel time. 
 
Board action is required to approve the out-of-state travel request. 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

19



091713 BCC Meeting

20



091713 BCC Meeting

21



091713 BCC Meeting

22



091713 BCC Meeting

23



091713 BCC Meeting

24



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 
B. Vehicle Bid Requests 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Captain Redmon will present vehicle prices for six (6) new Ford All Wheel Drive Police 
Interceptor SUVs and one (1) new Ford All Wheel Drive Police Interceptor sedan.  The price for 
the All Wheel Drive Police Interceptor SUV is $25,146 at a total cost of $150,876, and $26,005 
for the All Wheel Drive Police Interceptor sedan for a total amount of $176,881 for all seven (7) 
vehicles.  Including $5,348.43 for taxes and tags the total amount is $182,229.43.  Adequate 
funds have been budgeted to cover the cost of the vehicles.  Captain Redmon will bring another 
bid for equipment and installation at a future meeting. 
 
Board action is requested to accept the state contract price from Capital Ford in the amount of 
$176,881 plus $5,348.43 for taxes and tags for a total amount of $182,229.43. 
 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

25



091713 BCC Meeting

26



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

GREEN VALLEY COMMUNITY PARK, INC., REQUEST FOR AMENDMENTS IN 
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY GRANTS 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Janice Carroll, Green Valley Park, will update the Board on the Pine Run Road river access 
and the Green Valley walking trail grant in the amount of $75,000.  Due to the Watauga County 
TDA withdrawing as the grant sponsor; Green Valley Park has agreed to take on that role and is 
requesting the change to the NC Recreation Trails Program. 
 
The County approved an encroachment agreement with NCDOT for the Pine Run Road portion 
in June of 2012.  Based on conversations with NCDOT, the encroachment is still valid and the 
Department is awaiting direction as to the status of the project. 
 
As the Board approved the encroachment based on the TDA being the sponsor of the project, 
Ms. Carroll is seeking continued support with Green Valley Park being the sponsoring agent. 
 
Board direction is required so that Green Valley Park may proceed with the grant project. 
 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

27



091713 BCC Meeting

28



091713 BCC Meeting

29



091713 BCC Meeting

30



091713 BCC Meeting

31



091713 BCC Meeting

32



091713 BCC Meeting

33



091713 BCC Meeting

34



091713 BCC Meeting

35



091713 BCC Meeting

36



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

SOCIAL SERVICES’ OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Jim Atkinson, Social Services Director, will request Board approval for out-of-state travel 
for Samantha Miller to attend the Annual NAPSA conference in St. Paul, Minnesota from 
October 1-4, 2013.  Ms. Miller had applied for and received a scholarship to attend the 
conference.  The scholarship will pay for all expenses of the conference and therefore the only 
expense to the County will be Ms. Miller’s time at the conference. 
 
Board action is required to approve the out-of-state travel request. 
 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

37



091713 BCC Meeting

38



091713 BCC Meeting

39



091713 BCC Meeting

40



091713 BCC Meeting

41



091713 BCC Meeting

42



091713 BCC Meeting

43



091713 BCC Meeting

44



091713 BCC Meeting

45



091713 BCC Meeting

46



091713 BCC Meeting

47



091713 BCC Meeting

48



091713 BCC Meeting

49



091713 BCC Meeting

50



091713 BCC Meeting

51



091713 BCC Meeting

52



091713 BCC Meeting

53



Blank Page 
 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

54



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

REQUEST TO APPLY FOR A GRANT FROM THE FOUNDATION FOR RURAL SERVICE  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Jim Hamilton, Cooperative Extension Director, will request authorization to apply to the 
Foundation for Rural Service Grant Program.  The grant would be utilized to purchase a digital 
scale/portable head gate for shared use by the Watauga County cattlemen and as an educational 
tool for the Livestock Agent’s programming.  Total cost for the equipment would be $8,000 and 
Mr. Hamilton is requesting $4,000 in County matching funds.  Mr. Hamilton is proposing to use 
the unspent funds set aside for the multiflora rose program.  Mr. Hamilton plans to have the Blue 
Ridge Seeds of Change act as the fiscal agent. 
 
Board direction is requested.   
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

55



2013 Foundation For rural Service Grant ProGram

Foundation For rural 
Service miSSion Statement
The Foundation for Rural Service (FRS), in cooperation with 
the NTCA–The Rural Broadband Association, seeks to sustain 
and enhance the quality of life throughout rural America by ad-
vancing an understanding of rural telecommunications issues.  
FRS is a 501c(3) nonprofit organization. 

Grant GuidelineS
FRS will provide annual grants for programs in rural communities 
served by NTCA members.  Our grants support local efforts to 
build and sustain a high quality of life in rural America.   
Applicants may request grants in the range of $250 to $5,000. 
Each grant is a one-time award.  Projects may be funded at a lesser 
amount than requested. 

The foundation supports organizations and projects that fit into 
the following grant categories:

•	 Business	Development
Technology equipment for agriculture, entrepreneurship 
and/or job creation programs.

•	 Community	Development
Parks and recreation, tourism and the arts.  

•	 Education
Education technology (such as computers and smart 
boards), curriculum development, extracurricular activities 
and distance learning programs. 

•	 Telecommunications
Broadband adoption projects, technology education and 
training. 

We	give	priority	to	projects	that:	
•	 Could	be	fully	funded	by	the	grant	maximum	of	$5,000	

or have 75% or more of the project currently funded.
•	 Foster	collaboration	among	different	community	

agencies and local government.
•	 Have	a	long-term/long-lasting	effect	in	the	

community.
•	 Promote	community	participation	and	engagement.
•	 Make	rural	communities	a	better	place	to	live	and	work.	

As a guideline, FRS will not fund grants to the following::

•	 Individuals
•	 Scholarship	programs	
•	 International	organizations
•	 Lobbying	and	political	activities
•	 Ticketed	events
•	 Infrastructure/Building	campaigns
•	 Capital	campaigns
•	 Endowments
•	 Event	sponsorships

*Please	note	that	FRS	will	not	award	grant	money	to	an	
NTCA	member.		We	ask	that	NTCA	members	support	and	
assist	their	local	community	partners	in	obtaining	grants	
by	submitting	a	letter	of	support	(see	grant	proposal	
requirements	below).

091713 BCC Meeting

56



2013 Foundation For rural Service Grant ProGram

Grant ProPoSal requirementS

Please	submit	a	grant	proposal	containing	all	of	the	items	listed	below.	Incomplete	proposals	will	not	be	considered.		Electronic	
submissions will not be accepted. 

Your grant proposal must include:

1.   Cover letter signed by project leader or person responsible for funds

2.   Organizational overview (mission of organization, your programs and major activities)

3.  General description of project (no more than three to five pages) that includes:
	 •	 Problem	statement	(why	are	you	doing	this	project,	what	is	the	need	within	the	community?)
	 •	 Goals	and	objectives
	 •	 Project	activities
	 •	 Target	population	(demographics)
	 •	 Listing	of	other	partners	in	the	community
	 •	 Estimation	of	project	start	and	end	dates

4.  Project budget and amount requested
	 •	 Listing	of	other	funding	sources	for	the	project		(include	financial	commitment)

5. A letter of support from an NTCA member company endorsing the project (must be original signed copy on company 
letterhead). All applications without this letter will be ineligible for a grant.

6.		 W-9	form	with	a	tax	ID	number	and/or	501c(3)	certificate

PleaSe Send all materialS to the Foundation  
For rural Service Grant ProGram at:

4121	Wilson	Boulevard,	Suite	1000
Arlington,	VA	22203

For	questions	or	more	information,	email	foundation@frs.org.	

Proposals	due	to	FRS Notice	of	Grant	Award Fund	Distribution	by

October 1 December	1 December	31

091713 BCC Meeting

57



Blank Page 
 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

58



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE FOLLOWING: 
A. Watauga County Library’s Request to Name A Meeting Room In Memory of Ms. 

Evelyn Johnson 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Per Board direction, a public hearing has been scheduled to allow citizen comment on the 
naming of the meeting room in the Watauga County Library the Evelyn Johnson Meeting Room.  
Ms. Johnson worked for the Watauga County Library for over 30 years.  The Board recently 
passed a naming policy that requires the individual for which the facility will be named after to 
be deceased for one (1) year.  Ms. Johnson passed away in January 2013.  The Board approved 
the waiving of this requirement per the naming policy. 
 
In accordance with the naming policy a public hearing is required to be scheduled to seek 
comments and input from County citizens.  Once the public hearing has been completed the 
Board may vote on the request.  A unanimous vote of the Board is required for the naming 
application to be approved. 
 
Staff seeks directions from the Board.   
  

091713 BCC Meeting

59



091713 BCC Meeting

60



091713 BCC Meeting

61



091713 BCC Meeting

62



091713 BCC Meeting

63



091713 BCC Meeting

64



091713 BCC Meeting

65



091713 BCC Meeting

66



091713 BCC Meeting

67



091713 BCC Meeting

68



091713 BCC Meeting

69



091713 BCC Meeting

70



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE FOLLOWING: 
B. Proposed Amendments to the Ordinance To Regulate Signs in Watauga County 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman will present proposed changes to the County Sign Ordinance.  The proposed 
changes were developed by the Planning Board and staff per Commissioner request to afford 
signage for agritourism and similar businesses, to clarify language regarding campaign signs, and 
to regulate, rather than prohibit, off premises signage. 
 
The Planning Board recommends the Board adopt the changes as presented.  Note the proposed 
new wording found in Section J.4 and L.2.d were required by the change in the North Carolina 
Statutes. 
 
Upon completion of the hearing the Board may schedule a work session with the Planning Board 
or adopt the changes as presented. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
  

091713 BCC Meeting

71



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE SIGNS IN WATAUGA COUNTY 
 
Pursuant to the authority granted counties in North Carolina General Statute 153A-121, the Board 
of Commissioners of Watauga County do order and ordain the following: 
 
Purpose  
 
The purposes of this ordinance are to promote the safety and general welfare of the citizens of 
Watauga County and to maintain the aesthetically pleasing environment of the mountain setting 
through regulation of signs.  Specifically, the purposes are as follows: 
 

A. To provide for the safety of vehicular and pedestrian traffic by limiting visual interference of 
distractions. 

B. To protect the public from injury due to collapse, fire, decay, or abandonment of signs;  
 
C. To maintain the aesthetically pleasing environment which is unique to the mountains by 

regulating the size and location of signs. 
 
It is also acknowledged that the County's economic well being is heavily dependent upon the resort 
and tourism industry.  This dependence makes the preservation of the environment from 
unreasonable signage a matter of critical importance to the County. 
 
   A.  Definitions. 
 

1. Sign.  Any surface, fabric or device bearing lettered, pictorial or sculptured matter 
designed to convey information visually and exposed to public view, or any structure 
(including billboard or poster panel) designed to carry the above visual information. 

 
a. Sign Face.  The part of the sign that is or can be used to identify, advertise, or 

communicate information or for visual representation which attracts the attention of the 
public for any purpose.  The sign structure shall not be included as a portion any of the 
aforementioned sign face criteria are displayed on or designed as part of the sign 
structure. 

b. Sign Structure.  A supporting structure upon which any sign may be fastened, 
affixed, displayed, or applied, provided however said definition shall not include a 
building, fence, wall or earthen berm. 

 
2. Advertising Sign (Billboard).  A sign directing attention to a business, commodity, 

service, or entertainment which is conducted, sold or offered on premises other than the 
premises upon which the sign is located. 

 

091713 BCC Meeting

72



3. Business Sign.  A sign directing attention to a business, commodity, service or 
entertainment conducted, sold or offered on the same premises. 

 
4. Identification Sign.  A sign identifying only the name of the individual, family, 

organization or enterprise occupying the premises, or the profession of the occupant, or 
the name of the building on which the sign is displayed. 

 
5. Attached Sign.  A sign permanently attached to the building located on the premises. 

 
6. Detached Sign.  A free standing sign, including those mounted on towers or stations, not 

affixed to the building. 
 

7. Illumination.  A lighted sign shall be one which is illuminated only by light cast upon 
the sign from a concealed source;  a luminous sign is one illuminated by any type of 
internal or external electrical light source. 

 
8. Portable Sign.  Any sign which is attached to a mobile vehicle or is not permanently 

affixed to a building, structure, or the ground. 
 

9. Temporary Sign.  A sign or advertising display intended to be displayed for no longer 
than six (6) months to inform the public of an unusual or special event, or as otherwise 
specified in this ordinance. 

 
10. Changeable Electronic Variable Message Sign. A sign (other than a public variable 

message sign, which is erected by a town, city, county, state for federal government or 
agency for traffic communication purposes) which results in illuminated display or 
messages or information by the use of a matrix of electric lamps, i.e., digital, LED 
(light emitting diode) or similar or refined display technology, movable discs, movable 
panels, light apertures, or other methods, which allow the message change to be 
actuated by a control mechanism rather than manually changing of message.  

 
   B.  Signs Permitted Without Limitation. Signs Exempt from Permit Requirements but Subject to 
Ordinance Provisions.  The following shall be permitted without limitation, except as those 
described in Sections B and C of this ordinance. 
 

1. Signs to regulate traffic. 
 
2. Signs required to be posted by law. 

 
3. Warning signs and no-trespassing signs. 

 
4. Signs established by governmental agencies. 

 
5. Signs indicating bus stops, taxi stands, and similar transportation facilities. 

 

091713 BCC Meeting

73



6. Signs giving information concerning the location or use of accessory off-street parking 
facilities or loading and unloading facilities.  Signs shall not exceed two (2) square feet. 

 
7. Identification signs on premises of one and two-family dwellings (name and/or address). 

 
8. Temporary real estate signs advertising specific property for sale, lease, rent, or 

development.  Such signs shall be removed within five (5) working days after the sale, 
lease, etc. of the property.  Signs advertising single-family residential property shall not 
exceed sixteen (16) square feet.  Signs advertising large tract, commercial or multi-
family property shall not exceed thirty two (32) square feet. 

 
9. Temporary signs not exceeding sixteen (16) square feet directing to the premises of 

advertising yard sales or real estate for sale. 
 

10. Subdivision and multi-family complex identification signs not exceeding fifty (50) 
square feet in area. 

 
11. Signs not exceeding thirty-two (32) square feet involved in campaigns of religious, 

charitable, civic, fraternal, political and similar organizations.  Such signs shall be 
placed no more than sixty (60) days prior to an event, such as an election, and shall be 
removed within seven (7) days after completion of campaign unless permitted in 
accordance with Section E.  Political signs shall not be placed upon property that is a 
polling place and is owned and/or leased by the County or the County Board of 
Education except after 6 pm on the day before an election, and shall be removed no later 
than the day after the election. Political signs shall not be placed upon property owned 
and/or leased by the County or the County Board of Education that are not polling 
places at any time. 

 
12. Signs not exceeding fifty (50) square feet on premises of schools, colleges, hospitals, 

nursing homes, community recreation centers, parks, libraries, museums, art galleries, 
playgrounds, golf courses, country clubs, and similar uses. 

 
13. Signs not exceeding six (6) square feet which are on the premises of residences and are 

advertising home occupations. 
 

14. Identification and directional signs on premises of or directing to the premises of 
churches. 

 
15. Identification and directional signs on premises of or directing to the premises of sales 

of Watauga-grown agricultural commodities or locations of agritourism.  
 

16. Flags or emblems of political, civic, philanthropic, educational or religious 
organizations erected on private property. 

 
 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

74



 
 
   C.  Prohibited Signs.  
 

1. Signs that are structurally unsafe and thereby endanger the public safety shall be 
removed unless they are repaired and made to comply with the requirements of the 
North Carolina State Building Code. 

 
2. Flashing and moving signs are prohibited.  A sign provided as a public service showing 

the time and temperature shall not be considered a flashing sign.  Changeable electronic 
variable message signs are not considered flashing and moving provided the signs 
comply with the following provisions: 

a. The sign does not contain or display flashing, intermittent, or moving lights, including 
animated or scrolling advertising; 

b. The sign facing remains in a fixed position for at least eight (8) seconds (for off-premise 
signs) and one (1) hour (for on-premise signs); 

c. If a message is changed electronically, it must be accomplished within an interval of two (2) 
seconds or less; 

d. The sign must contain a default design that will freeze the sign in one position if a 
malfunction occurs; 

e. A changeable electronic variable message sign shall be equipped with a control system that 
automatically adjusts light emission level to ambient light conditions so as to not cause glare 
or excessive brightness.  In no case shall the light level of any such sign exceed 300 nits 
(candelas per square meter) between the time of sunset and sunrise, nor 5,000 nits at other 
times.  No more than 25% of the sign message may be white.  Notwithstanding the 
acceptable light levels, internal illumination shall not be at an intensity that is distracting to 
vehicular traffic; and 

f. Subsequent to installation, Watauga County shall have the ongoing discretion to require that 
brightness, frequency, colors or other qualities be adjusted in order to address safety 
concerns. 

 
3. Advertising and business signs that are tacked, nailed, posted, pasted, painted, glued, or 

otherwise attached to trees or rocks. 
 

4. No source of illumination on a sign, such as floodlights, spotlights, unshielded bulbs, 
etc. shall shine directly into any public right-of-way. Internal illumination shall not be at 
an intensity that is distracting to vehicular traffic.   

 
D. On Premises Signs.  

 
   1.  Attached business and industrial identification signs. 
 
       Permitted number and area of    Wall signs shall be limited to signs 10% of      
       signs:      each wall.  The roof shall be considered as a  
       wall  and separately from each wall.  Only  
       visible portions of the roof may be used when 
       calculating sign area.  Projecting signs shall be 

091713 BCC Meeting

75



       limited to one (1) twenty-four (24) square foot 
       for each street/road front. 
 
       Permitted illumination:             Luminous-lighted. 
 
       Permitted location:                 Signs shall be mounted flush against the  
       building extending not more than ten (10) feet 
       above the parapet of the building, or may  
       project from the wall of the building (sign face 
       is perpendicular to wall).  Projecting signs  
       must not extend into a street/road right-of-way 
       and may not exceed twenty-four (24) square  
       feet in area. 
 
 
   2.  Detached business and industrial identification signs 
 
 
       Permitted number of signs:          One (1) per street/road front, plus an  
       additional sign may be utilized for each two  
       hundred (200) feet of street/road frontage.   
       (There must be a distance of 200 feet between 
       each sign located on the same premises when 
       the signs are located on the same street/road.  
       This spacing requirement does not apply to  
       signs on premises of adjacent businesses.)  
       Permanent subdivision signs shall not exceed 
       fifty (50) square feet.  Produce signs shall be 
       limited to two (2) detached signs per  business. 
       Each sign may not exceed twenty-four (24)  
       square feet. 
 
       Maximum area of signs:              Fifty (50) square feet.  If a property and/or  
       business industry owner is eligible for more  
       than one (1) detached sign (due to road  
       frontage) and he waives the right to erect more 
       than one (1) detached sign and also waives the 
       right to have any advertising sign(s) on his  
       property, he may petition the Planning Board 
       for a permit to erect one (1) detached sign with 
       an area of up to one hundred fifty (150) square 
       feet. 
 
       Permitted illumination:             Luminous-lighted 
 
       Permitted location:                 Behind street/road right-of-way 

091713 BCC Meeting

76



 
       Maximum height:                     Thirty five (35) feet in height above the  
       street/road or natural grade level, whichever is 
       higher, depending upon terrain. 
 
3.      Changeable electronic variable message signs are subject to Section C.2 to the extent 

applicable. 
 
 

E. Advertising Signs. 
 
1. Newly erected advertising signs shall not be permitted. 
 
2. Maintenance of existing advertising signs shall be in accordance with Sections J and L. 
3. No existing advertising signs may be converted to or replaced with a changeable 

electronic variable message sign. 
 

1.       Advertising signs shall not exceed three hundred (300) square feet in area unless 
otherwise approved by the Planning Board.  This square footage includes both sign face and 
border.  

 
2.       Advertising signs shall be located as follows: 

 
a. Be located outside the right-of-way of all roads, or thirty five (35) feet from the 

center line if there is no recorded right-of-way, provided that on corner lots no part of an 
advertising sign may be located within a triangular area formed by the street right-of-way 
lines an a line connecting them at points fifty (50) feet from the right-of-way 
intersection. 

 
b. Be located only in "unzoned commercial areas" as defined in the North Carolina 

DOT Outdoor Advertising Manual and spaced as set forth in said manual except that 
new “side-by-side” signs shall be prohibited. This paragraph shall be applicable on all 
streets/roads in Watauga County which are not within the jurisdiction of a municipality. 

 
c. Be located not closer than one hundred (100) feet to a pre-existing residential 

structure on an adjoining lot.  This does not prevent the owner of a residence from 
placing an advertising sign on the same lot as the residence provided that the placement 
of such sign complies with subparagraph b. above. 

 
d. Not exceed thirty five (35) feet in height above the street/road grade level. 

 
e. Not exceed a width of thirty (30) feet. 

 
f.  Be located in such a way that they maintain horizontal and vertical clearance of all 

overhead electrical conductors in accordance with the National Electric Code and local 
electric utilities’ requirements. 

091713 BCC Meeting

77



 
3.        No existing advertising signs may be converted to or replaced with a changeable     

electronic variable message sign. No new locations for changeable electronic variable 
message signs shall be permitted. 
 

 
 
   F.  Special Sign Regulations.  
 

1. For the purpose of this sign regulation an industrial or business complex or a shopping 
center consisting of two (2) or more businesses located in a unified building or group of 
buildings may have business and/or identification signs as permitted in Section D.1 in this 
ordinance.  The center as a whole may have one (1) detached directory sign per street front.  
The center or complex sign shall not exceed fifty (50) square feet and each business and/or 
identification sign shall not exceed twenty-five (25) square feet. 

 
2. Three (3) temporary signs shall be permitted on the site of any construction work bearing 

the name of the buildings, business, owner or those furnishing services or materials used on 
such construction work.  Such sign(s) shall be removed within five (5) working days after 
completion of construction. 

 
   G.  Portable Signs. 
 

1. Advertising (off-premises) portable signs shall be prohibited except as specified in Section 
B. 

 
2. Electrical cords for any portable sign may not extend across any surface where they will be 

traversed by vehicular or pedestrian traffic.  If it is essential for a cord to extend across 
such a surface, then the cord must be buried or secured overhead.  Furthermore, an 
electrical sign must comply with the National Electrical Code and display the Underwriter's 
seal of approval.  Coupled with this provision all signs must be clearly marked with the 
name, address and telephone number of the person, firm, or corporation erecting or 
maintaining the sign. 

 
3. All portable signs must have some type of tie down provisions to prevent them from 

becoming a hazard during high winds. 
 
   H.  Permit Required.  
 
       For signs regulated by Sections D, E, F, and G of this ordinance, a permit shall be required in 
accordance with the North Carolina State Building Code, Subsection 2301.3 Appendix H.  Such 
permit shall be obtained from the Watauga County Department of Planning and Inspections.  
Applications for permits must be accompanied by a fee which will be set from time to time by the 
County Commissioners and must show the following information: 
 

1. Ownership of the property on which the signs will be located. 

091713 BCC Meeting

78



 
2. Name and address of the sign owner. 

 
3. Plans showing the exact location of the sign with respect to the building driveway or 

street access, property line and parking areas. 
 

4. Size, shape, design and method of attachment for the sign. 
 
       For signs proposed to be located on Highways 321, 221, 421, and 105, evidence of N.C. DOT 
approval shall be required. 
 
   I.  Variances and Appeals.  
 

1. Appeal:  With Request for Variance.  Recognizing that the strict application of the 
requirements of this chapter may work an undue hardship on certain applicants, variances 
from the strict application of the provisions of this chapter may be granted by the Watauga 
County Board of Adjustment. Each application for a variance shall be in writing and shall 
state the reasons for the request for variance.  The basis for a claim of hardship shall not be 
economics alone.  The Board of Adjustment shall grant the variance, grant the variance with 
conditions, or deny the variance within sixty (60) days of the date of appeal from the 
decision of the County administrative official. 

 
2. Appeal:  Without Request for Variance.  Any sign owner or applicant who alleges that a 

County administrative official acted erroneously in enforcing this ordinance may appeal the 
decision of that administrative official to the Board of Adjustment as specified in I.1. above. 

 
3. Every decision of the Board of Adjustment shall be subject to review at the instance of any 

aggrieved party by the Superior Court by proceedings in the nature of certiorari.  The appeal 
to Superior Court must be filed within thirty (30) days of the filing by the secretary of the 
Board of Adjustment to the decision in the office of the Department of Planning and 
Inspections. 

 
   J.  Maintenance of Signs.  
 
       All sign supports, braces, poles, wires, and anchors thereof shall be constructed and kept in 
good repair as specified in the North Carolina State Building Code, Section 2301 Appendix H.  
They shall be maintained in safe conditions, free from deterioration, missing parts, and peeling 
paint.  Any sign not in compliance with these standards shall be deemed a nuisance and the 
following action may be taken. 
 

1. The Building Inspector or his agent shall give written notice to the owner specifying the 
sign indicated and telling what needs to be done to bring the sign into compliance. 

 
2. The owner of the sign shall respond to the notice within two (2) weeks and shall have sixty 

(60) days to complete said repairs.  Additional time shall be granted by the Building 

091713 BCC Meeting

79



Inspector only upon delay of parts when it has been clearly shown that the parts have been 
ordered. 

 
3. Failure to complete repairs in the specified time shall result in the Building Inspector 

causing the sign to be repaired, removed or altered at the expense of the owner(s). 
 

4. In the event of a sign which is damaged in excess of 60% of its replacement value, such 
shall be restored or repaired only in compliance with the provisions of this ordinance.  
This limitation does not apply to repair of any outdoor advertising signs for which there is 
in effect a valid permit issued by the NC Department of Transportation so long as the square 
footage of its advertising surface is not increased. 

 
   K.  Obsolete or Abandoned Signs.  
 

1. Signs or parts of signs which advertise or pertain to a business, product, service, 
commodity, event, activity, or purpose which no longer exists or that has not been in 
use for ninety (90) days or more shall be deemed to be an abandoned sign.  Signs which 
are associated with seasonal business such as ski shops, Horn in the West, etc., shall not 
be considered obsolete or abandoned provided there is clear intent to continue the 
business in the up-coming season. 

 
2. Obsolete or abandoned signs are prohibited and shall be removed by the owner or his 

agent within thirty (30) days of termination of the business, activity, event, etc. 
 

3. Failure to remove such signs or parts of signs shall result in written notice from the 
Building Inspector.  Failure to comply with this notice shall result in the sign being 
removed at the owner's expenses. 

 
   L.  Non-Conforming Signs.  
 

1. Intent - Signs in existence prior to the adoption of this ordinance and which do not 
conform to the provisions of this ordinance are declared non-conforming signs.  It is the 
intent of this section to recognize that the eventual elimination of non-conforming signs 
is just as important to the health, safety, welfare, and appearance of Watauga County as 
is the prohibition of new signs which would violate this ordinance.  It is also the intent 
of this section to allow sign owners a reasonable period of time to remove or bring into 
compliance such signs.  This section provides a period of compliance which avoids any 
unreasonable invasion of established property rights. 

 
2. General Provisions for Non-Conforming Signs – A non-conforming sign may be 

continued provided that it: 
 

a. Shall not be modified in any way which increases its degree of non-conformity. 
 

b. Shall not be expanded or relocated, unless such relocation brings the sign into 
conformance with this ordinance. 

091713 BCC Meeting

80



 
c. Shall not be re-established after damage or destruction in excess of sixty (60) percent 

of its replacement value at the time of the damage or destruction, except as provided 
in Subsection J.4. 

 
d. Shall not be structurally changed or replaced with another non-conforming sign.  

Advertising copy shall not be considered a structural change. This limitation does 
not apply to reconstruction of any outdoor advertising signs for which there is in 
effect a valid permit issued by the NC Department of Transportation so long as the 
square footage of its advertising surface is not increased. 

  
3. Removal and Compliance Schedule for Non-Conforming Signs: 

 
a. Signs which do not comply with Section J, Maintenance of Signs;  and Section K, 

Obsolete or Abandoned Signs;  shall come into compliance in accordance with the 
notification schedule therein. 

 
b. Signs prohibited in Section C,  Prohibited Signs and Section G,  Portable Signs shall 

be removed or brought into compliance within thirty (30) days of adoption of this 
ordinance. 

 
c. In cases where signs exceed the other requirements of this ordinance (square footage, 

height, setback) such signs may be amortized-provided North Carolina General 
Statutes-do not require cash compensation according to the following schedule. 

 
d. In cases where signs exceed the other requirements of this ordinance (square footage, 

height, setback) such signs may be amortized - provided North Carolina General 
Statutes - do not require cash compensation according to the following schedule. 

 
ORIGINAL COST OF SIGN        MUST CONFORM WITHIN 

 
Less than $1000               2 years from effective date of ordinance 
$1000 - 3000                  3 years from effective date of ordinance 
$3001 - 5000                  5 years from effective date of ordinance 
over $5000                     7 years from effective date of ordinance 

 
e.  Non-conforming signs shall be removed except as regulated by N.C.G.S.  136-131.1 

or brought into conformity according to the time schedules herein.  Failure to comply 
shall result in Watauga County instituting penalties and/or remedies as per Section M 
and N of this ordinance. 

 
   M.  Penalties for Violation.  
 
       Any person violating provisions of this ordinance shall be given ten (10) working days to 
comply.  Failure to comply within ten (10) working days shall be a misdemeanor and upon 
conviction shall be punished for each offense by a fine not exceeding fifty (50) dollars or by 

091713 BCC Meeting

81



imprisonment not to exceed thirty (30) days, or both.  Each day such violation continues shall be 
deemed a separate offense. 
 
 
   N.  Remedies.  
 
       In case any sign is erected, constructed, reconstructed, altered, repaired, converted or continued 
in violation of this ordinance the Building Inspector or any other appropriate County authority, as 
outlined in Sections J, K, L, may institute an action for injunction , or other appropriate action or 
proceeding to prevent or abate such violations. 
 
   O.  Interpretation and Conflicts.  
 

1. Minimum requirements.  The standards and provisions of this ordinance shall be 
interpreted as being the minimum requirements necessary to uphold the purposes of this 
ordinance. 

 
2. Other regulations, ordinances, etc.  Whenever this ordinance imposes a higher standard 

than required by other regulations, ordinances or rules, or by easements, covenants, or 
agreements, the provisions of this ordinance shall govern. 

 
3. Statutes.  When the provisions of any applicable state or federal statutes impose higher 

standards, the provisions of such statutes shall govern unless it is determined that such 
higher standard is not being enforced.  In such case, the provisions of this ordinance 
shall govern until such time as the higher standard is enforced. 

 
   P.  Severability.  
 
       If any part of this Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional, it shall be construed to have been 
legislative intent to pass said ordinance without such unconstitutional provision, and the remainder 
of said ordinance shall be deemed and held to be valid as if such portion had not been included.  If 
to be inapplicable to any person, group of persons, property, kind of property, circumstances or set 
of circumstances, such holding shall not affect the applicability thereof to any other persons, 
property or circumstances. 
 
   Q.  Effective Date.  
 
       This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from its adoption by the Watauga County 
Board of Commissioners.  Adopted this the 16th day of April 1985.  Amended this the 18th day of 
April, 2005.  Amended this the 20th day of October, 2009. 
 
ADOPTED this the 20th day of October, 2009. 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 

091713 BCC Meeting

82



       James M. Deal, Jr., Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
         SEAL 
___________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
   TRANSPORTATION - DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS                T19A:02E.0200 
 
                  SECTION - 0200 - OUTDOOR ADVERTISING 
 
   .0201 DEFINITIONS FOR OUTDOOR ADVERTISING CONTROL 
 
   (a) Commercial or Industrial activities for Unzoned Areas.  Those activities generally are 
recognized as commercial or industrial by zoning authorities in the state, except that for the purpose 
of controlling outdoor advertising none of the following activities shall be considered commercial 
or industrial: 

1. Outdoor advertising structures; 
2. Agricultural, forestry, ranching, grazing, farming, and related activities, including, but 

not limited to, wayside fresh produce stands; 
3. Transient or temporary activities; 
4. Activities not visible from the main traveled way; 
5. Activities more than 660 feet from the nearest edge of the right of way; 
6. Activities conducted in a building principally used as a residence;  
7. Railroad tracks and minor sidings; 
8. Any commercial or industrial activity engaged in or established primarily for the 

purpose of qualifying an area for the establishment of outdoor advertising.  It shall be 
conclusively presumed that any such activity is for the primary purpose of qualifying 
an area for outdoor advertising which: 

(A) does not regularly have an attendant or individual, who is an employee of the 
business, present during normal working hours; 

(B) has not earned within the immediate past year a gross annual income of at 
least twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000), except that, in those cases 
where the business has been in continuous operation at the same location for 
at least two years, there shall be no gross annual income requirement.  
Evidence of gross annual income shall be furnished by the sign owner as 
required by the District Engineer; and 

(C) derives the majority of gross income from coin/currency operated vending 
devices.  Any sign erected using the criteria stipulated in Subparagraph .0201 
(a) (8) shall be removed at the sign owner's expense if any provision of 
Subparagraph .0201(a) (8) is violated or is no longer in existence within 24 
months of the date of issuance of the permit;   

9. Any outdoor advertising activity or any other business or commercial activity carried 
on in connection with an outdoor advertising activity. 

091713 BCC Meeting

83



   (b)  Zoned Commercial or Industrial Areas.  Those areas which are zoned for business, industry, 
commerce, or trade pursuant to a state or local zoning ordinance or regulation. 
   (c)  Unzoned Commercial or Industrial Areas: 

(1) Those areas which are not zoned by state or local law, regulation, or ordinance, and 
on which there is located one or more permanent structures devoted to a commercial or 
industrial activity or on which a commercial or industrial activity is actually conducted, 
whether or not a permanent structure is located thereon, and the area along the highway 
extending outward 800 feet from and beyond the edge of such activity.  Each side of the 
highway will be considered separately in applying this definition; 
(2) All measurements shall be from the outer edges of the regularly used buildings, 
parking lots, storage or processing and landscaped areas of the commercial or industrial 
activities, not from the property line of the activities, and shall be along or parallel to the 
edge or pavement of the highway. 

   (d)  Traveled Way.  The traveled way of a highway on which through traffic is carried.  In the 
case of a divided highway, the traveled way of each of the separated roadways for traffic in 
opposite directions is a main-traveled way.  It does not include such facilities as frontage roads, 
turning roadways, or parking areas. 
   (e)  Main-traveled Way.  The traveled way of a highway on which through traffic is carried.  In 
the case of a divided highway, the traveled way of each of the separated roadways for traffic in 
opposite directions is a main-traveled way.  It does not include such facilities as frontage roads, 
turning roadways, or parking areas. 
   (f)  Sign.  A sign is any outdoor sign, display, light, device, figure, painting, drawing, message, 
placard, poster, billboard, or other thing which is designed, intended, or used to advertise or inform, 
any part of the advertising or information contents of which is visible from any part of the main 
traveled way of the interstate or federal-aid primary highway system. 
   (g)  Maintain.  To allow to exist. 
   (h)  Scenic Area.  A scenic area is any area of particular scenic beauty or historical significance as 
determined by the federal, state, or local officials having jurisdiction thereof, and includes interests 
in land which have been acquired for the restoration, preservation and enhancement of scenic 
beauty. 
 
 
   NORTH CAROLINA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 02/01/83          2E-4 
 
 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

84



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE FOLLOWING: 
C. Proposed Amendments to the Following Ordinances: 

1. Foscoe-Grandfather Community Zoning Ordinance 
2. Valle Crucis Historic District Ordinance 
3. Ordinance to Regulate Electronic Access Gates for Gated Communities 
4. Ordinance to Regulate Wireless Communications Towers 
5. Water Supply Watershed Protection Ordinances 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman will present changes to the various ordinances included in the packet due to the changes in 
the North Carolina General Statutes.  A staff report on the changes has been included. 
 
Upon completion of the hearing the Board may schedule a work session with the Planning Board or 
adopt the changes as presented.  As these changes were mandated by the North Carolina General 
Assembly, little discretion is left for Commissioner consideration. 
 
Staff requests direction from the Board. 
 
 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

85



STAFF REPORT 

VARIOUS ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS  
Initiated by S.L. 2013-126 - An Act to Clarify and Modernize Statutes 

Regarding Zoning Boards of Adjustment 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
TO:  County Planning Board 
  Board of County Commissioners 
FROM: Planning & Inspections Department Staff 
DATE:  July 3, 2013 
RE:  Legislation Affecting Local Ordinances that involve the Board of Adjustment  
 
SYNOPSIS: 
From the NC Local Government Law Blog – by David Owens: 
“The statute creating boards of adjustment and setting their authority was first adopted in North 
Carolina in 1923.  Over the decades the statue has been frequently adjusted – some 17 times by my quick 
count.  The result was a nearly century old statute with its original language largely intact, supplemented 
with dozens of uncoordinated individual legislative tweaks added over the decades…” 
What originated as a modest effort by the North Carolina Bar Association’s Zoning, Planning & Land 
Use Section to fix a few practical issues in the statute establishing local Boards of Adjustment, H.B. 276 
eventually expanded into a line by line review and ultimately evolved into a complete modernization of 
the statues. The intent was not to alter the fundamental aspects of the Boards’ authority, but to provide 
clarity, create standardized procedures for Board actions, and provide greater certainty and predictability 
about the processes used by Boards of Adjustment throughout the State.  
 
SUMMARY: 
Because Watauga County has adopted numerous ordinances that rely upon the Board of Adjustment to 
hear cases involving administrative reviews of staff decisions (appeals), requests to vary provisions of the 
ordinance (variances), or in some cases, requests for special use or conditional use permits, the new 
legislation necessitates local government review and revision of adopted local ordinances. Affected 
Ordinances follow this summary. We’ve also taken this opportunity to correct minor typographical errors 
and punctuation.    
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND NOTICE: 
Prior to taking action on many of the proposed amendments that follow, the Board of Commissioners 
must hold a duly advertised public hearing.   
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board will review and comment on the proposed amendments prior to the public hearing. 
No plan consistency statement is necessary as local ordinance making authority in North Carolina is 
derived from and limited by State law.   
 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ACTION: 
The Commissioners’ approval of these amendments is certainly reasonable and in the public interest 
because the County is obliged to comply with the law.  
 

091713 BCC Meeting

86



091713 BCC Meeting

87



ZONING ORDINANCE for FOSCOE-GRANDFATHER COMMUNITY 
Original Adoption Date: November 6, 1990 

 
ARTICLE II 

 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
Section 5. Open Space Requirements. No part of a yard, court or other open space provided 
around any building or structure for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be included as a past part of a yard or other open space required under this 
ordinance for another building or structure. 
 

ARTICLE IV  
 

ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 
 

Section 2. Permit Process. 
 

(d) Zoning Permit for New, Altered, or Nonconforming Uses  
 

(1) It shall be unlawful to sue use or occupy or to permit the use or occupancy of 
any building or premises, or both, or any part thereof which may be hereafter 
created, erected, changed, converted, (or wholly or partly altered or enlarged 
as to its use or structure) until a zoning permit shall have been issued therefore 
by the Zoning Official stating that the proposed use of the building or land 
conforms to the requirements of this ordinance.  

 
ARTICLE V  

 
DISTRICT REGULATIONS 

 
Section 3. Highway District. 
 
B. Conditional Uses  
 
2. a. 6. The conditional use permit shall be issued for a one (1) year period with automatic 
 renewal for additional (1) year periods provided that the site is maintained in a 
 satisfactory manner as originally approved. When the conditional use is discontinued or 
 abandoned for one hundred and eighty (180) consecutive days, the special conditional use 
 permit shall become null and void and application to Watauga County will be required 
 for any subsequent special conditional use request for the site. 
 
C. Dimensional Requirements  
 
Yard  Minimum yard requirements for residential structures shall be as established for 
Requirements  the Rural District. Yard requirements for nonresidential structures are established  
  in Article VI, Section 3 4.  

091713 BCC Meeting

88



ARTICLE VII  
 

AMENDMENTS 
 

Section 5. Public Heating Hearing and Notice 
 
Section 6. Action of Board of County Commissioners 
 

ARTICLE VIII  
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT  
 

Section 3. Administration  
 
 The Board shall adopt rules of procedures and regulations for the conduct of its affairs.  
 
 All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public. The Board shall keep a record of its 
meetings, including the vote of each member on every question, a complete summary of the 
evidence submitted to it, documents submitted to it and all official actions. The Board shall give 
due notice of matters coming before it.  
 
 The person acting as Chairman of the Board Chair and Board Clerk is are authorized to 
administer oaths to any witnesses in any matter coming before the Board.  
 
 Application for variances, request for interpretations and appeal for review of decisions of 
the Department of Planning & Inspections shall be filed with the Secretary of the Board Clerk, as 
agent for the Board, on forms provided by the Secretary Clerk.  
 
 It shall be the responsibility of the Department of Planning & Inspections to notify by 
certified mail the applicant or appellant of the disposition which the Board made of the matter.  
      The decision of the Board shall be delivered to the applicant, property owner, and to any 
other person who has submitted a written request for a copy, prior to the date the decision 
becomes effective.  
 
 It shall be the responsibility of the Department of Planning & Inspections to issue in accord 
with the Board’s action on an appeal or application, if a permit is authorized by the Board action.  
 
Section 4. Quorum and Vote Required  
 
 A quorum of Board, necessary to conduct any business of the Board, shall consist of four-
fifths of the total membership of the Board.  
 
 The concurring vote of four-fifths of the members of the Board, present for the hearing, shall 
be necessary in order to: to grant a variance. A majority of the members shall be required to 
decide any other quasi-judicial matter or to determine an appeal made in the nature of certiorari. 
Vacant positions on the Board and members who are disqualified from voting on a quasi-judicial 

091713 BCC Meeting

89



matter shall not be considered members of the Board for calculation of the requisite majority if 
there are no qualified alternates available to take the place of such members.    

 
a.  Reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of the Department of Planning 
 & Inspections;  

 
b.  Decide in favor of the applicant any matter upon which it is required to pass by this 
 Ordinance; or  

 
c.  Approve an application for a variance, or conditional use permit.  

 
A simple majority vote shall be necessary to conduct routine business of the Board. 
  
Section 5. Application of the Variance Power  
 
 A variance may only be allowed by the Board in cases involving practical difficulties or 
unnecessary hardships when substantial evidence in the official record of the application support 
all of the following findings:  

 
a. That if the applicant complies with the provisions of the ordinance, he can secure no 

reasonable return from, or make no reasonable use of, his property; 
a. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It shall 
 not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use 
 can be made of the property.   

 
b. That the hardship results from the application of the ordinance only; 
b. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as 
 location, size, or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as 
 hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general 
 public, may not be the basis for granting a variance.  
 
c. That the hardship is suffered by the property in question; 
c. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. 
 The act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify 
 the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship. 
 
d. That the hardship is not the result of the applicant’s own actions; 
d. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, 
 such that public safety is secured and substantial justice is achieved.  
 
e. That the hardship is peculiar to the applicant’s property. 
 

 Furthermore, the Board must find that the variance is in harmony with the general purpose 
and intent of the ordinance and preserves its spirit, and that in the granting of the variance the 
public safety and welfare have been assured and substantial justice has been done.  

No change in permitted uses may be authorized by variance. 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

90



 The Board may impose reasonable appropriate conditions upon the granting of any variance, 
in order to protect the public interest and neighboring property owners.  Violation of any such 
conditions shall be a violation of this ordinance. provided that the conditions are reasonably 
related to the variance. 

 
Section 9. Application of Conditional Use Power  
 

b.  Subject to subsection (c), the Board of Adjustment shall issue the requested permit unless 
 it concludes, based upon the information submitted at the hearing, that:  

 
(1) The requested permit is not within its jurisdiction according to the district 
 regulations pertaining to uses, or  

 
(2) The application is incomplete, or  

 
(3)  If completed as proposed in the application, the development will not comply with 
 one or more requirements of this article Ordinance (not including those the applicant 
 is not required to comply with under the circumstances specified in Article II, Section 
 4, Nonconforming Uses).  

 
d.  The Board shall consider whether the application is complete. If the Board concludes that the 

application is incomplete and the applicant refuses to provide the necessary information, the 
application shall be denied. A motion to this effect shall specify either the particular type of 
information lacking or the particular requirement with respect to which the application if 
incomplete. A motion to this effect, concurred in by two members a majority of the Board, 
shall constitute the Board’s finding on this issue. If a motion to this effect is not made and 
concurred in by at least two a majority of members, this shall be taken as an affirmative 
finding by the Board that the application is complete.  

 
e.  The Board shall consider whether the application complies with all of the applicable 

requirements of this chapter Ordinance. If a motion to this effect passes by the necessary 
four-fifths vote a majority of members, the Board need not make further findings concerning 
such requirements. If such a motion fails to receive the necessary four-fifths majority vote or 
is not made, then a motion shall be made that the application be found not in compliance with 
one or more requirements of this chapter. Such a motion shall specify the particular 
requirements the application fails to meet. A separate vote may be taken with respect to each 
requirement not met by the application. , the vote of the number of members equal to more 
than one-fifth of the Board membership (excluding vacant seats) in favor of such a motion 
shall be sufficient to constitute such motion a finding of the Board. It shall be conclusively 
presumed that the application complies with all requirements not found by the Board to be 
unsatisfied through this process. As provided in Subsection 9 (c) if the Board concludes that 
the application fails to meet one or more of the requirements of this section, the application 
shall be denied.  

 
f.  If the Board concludes that all such requirements are met, it shall issue the permit unless it 

adopts a motion to deny the application for one or more of the reasons set forth in Subsection 
9 (c). Such motion shall propose specific findings, based upon the evidence submitted, 

091713 BCC Meeting

91



justifying such a conclusion and is . Since such a motion is not in favor of the applicant, it is 
carried by a simple majority vote.   

 
k.  All additional conditions or requirements authorized by this Section are enforceable in the 

same manner and to the same extent as any other applicable requirements if of this chapter 
Ordinance.  

 
l.  A vote may be taken on application conditions or requirements before consideration of 

whether the permit should be denied for any of the reasons set forth in Subsections (c) or (d) 
(b) or (c).  

 
Section 11. Appeals of Board Actions  
 
 Every quasi-judicial decision of the Board shall be subject to review at the instance of any 
aggrieved party by the Superior Court by proceedings in the nature of certiorari. The appeal to 
Superior Court must be filed within 30 days of the filing by the Secretary of the Board Clerk of 
the decision in the office of the Department of Planning & Inspections or the delivery of the 
notice required in VIII 3, whichever is later. 

091713 BCC Meeting

92



VALLE CRUCIS 
HISTORIC DISTRICT ORDINANCE 

Original Adoption Date: September 1, 1990 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 

4.3 Administration 
 

 The Board shall adopt rules of procedures and regulations for the conduct of its affairs. 
 

 All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public.  The Board shall keep a record of 
its meetings, including the vote of each member on every question, a complete summary of 
the evidence submitted to it, documents submitted to it and all official actions.  The Board 
shall give due notice of matters coming before it. 

 
 The person acting as Chairman of the Board Chair and Board Clerk are is authorized to 
administer oaths to any witnesses in any matter coming before the Board. 

 
 Applications for variances, requests for interpretations and appeals for review of 
decisions of the Department of Planning and Inspections shall be filed with the Secretary of 
the Board Clerk, as agent for the Board, on forms provided by the Secretary Clerk. 

 
 It shall be responsibility of the Department of Planning and Inspections to notify by 
certified mail the applicant or appellant of the disposition that the Board made of the matter. 
       The decision of the Board shall be delivered to the applicant, property owner, and to any 
other person who has submitted a written request for a copy prior to the date the decision 
becomes effective.  
 
 It shall be the responsibility of the Department of Planning and Inspections to issue 
permits in accord with the Board’s action on an appeal or application, if a permit is 
authorized by the Board action. 

 
4.4 Quorum and Vote Required 

 
 A quorum of the Board, necessary to conduct any business of the Board, shall consist of 
four-fifths of the total membership of the Board. 
 
 The concurring vote of four-fifths of the members of the Board, present for the hearing, 
shall be necessary in order to: to grant a variance. A majority of the members shall be 
required to decide any other quasi-judicial matter or to determine an appeal made in the 
nature of certiorari. Vacant positions on the Board and members who are disqualified from 
voting on a quasi-judicial matter shall not be considered members of the Board for 
calculation of the requisite majority if there are no qualified alternates available to take the 
place of such members.    

091713 BCC Meeting

93



 
a. Reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of the  Department of 
Planning and Inspections; 

 
b. Decide in favor of the applicant any matter upon which it is required to  pass by 
this Ordinance; 

 
c. Approve an application for a variance. 

 
 A simple majority vote shall be necessary to conduct routine business of the Board. 

 
4.5 Application of the Variance Power 
 

 A variance may only be allowed by the Board in cases involving practical difficulties or 
unnecessary hardships when substantial evidence in the official record of the application 
supports all of the following findings: 

 
a. That if the applicant complies with the provisions of the ordinance, he can secure 

no reasonable return from, or make no reasonable use of, his property; 
a. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the 
 ordinance. It shall not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the 
 variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property.   
 
b. That the hardship results from the application of the ordinance only; 
b. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such 
 as location, size, or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, 
 as well as hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the 
 neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting a variance. 
 
c. That the hardship is suffered by the property in question; 
c. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the 
 property owner. The act of purchasing property with knowledge that 
 circumstances exist that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be 
 regarded as a self-created hardship. 
 
d. That the hardship is not the result of the applicant’s own actions; 
d. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of  the 
 ordinance, such that public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.  

 
e. That the hardship is peculiar to the applicant’s property. 
 
Furthermore, the Board must find that the variance is in harmony with the general 

purpose and intent of the ordinance and preserves its spirit, and that in the granting of the 
variance the public safety and welfare have been assured and substantial justice has been 
done.  

No change in permitted uses may be authorized by variance. 

091713 BCC Meeting

94



 
The Board may impose reasonable appropriate conditions upon the granting of any 

variance, in order to protect the public interest and neighboring property owners.  Violation 
of any such conditions shall be a violation of this ordinance. provided that the conditions are 
reasonably related to the variance. 

 
4.8 Exceptions to Stay of Action 
 

 An appeal to the Board of a determination or decision shall not stay proceedings in 
furtherance of the decision or determination appealed from, if the Department of Planning and 
Inspections certifies either: 
 

a. that a stay would cause imminent peril to life or property 
 
b. that the situation appealed from is transitory in nature and, therefore, an appeal 
 would seriously interfere with enforcement of this Ordinance. 

 
 In each instance, the Department of Planning and Inspections shall place in the certificate 
affidavit facts to support the conclusion. 

 
 
4.10 Appeals of Board Actions 
 

Every quasi-judicial decision of the Board shall be subject to review at the instance of 
any aggravated party by the Superior Court by proceedings in the nature of certiorari.  The 
appeal to Superior Court must be filed within 30 days of the filing by the Secretary of the 
Board of the decision in the office of the Department of Planning and Inspections or the 
delivery of the notice required in 4.3, whichever is later.  

 

091713 BCC Meeting

95



WATAUGA COUNTY ORDINANCE TO REGULATE INSTALLATION AND 
MAINTENANCE OF ELECTRONIC ACCESS GATES FOR GATED COMMUNITIES 

Original Adoption Date: September 18, 2012 
 

100.09 APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 
The Watauga County Board of Adjustments shall hear all appeals which may be taken by an 
owner or other party in interest from any decision or order of the Watauga County Office of 
Planning and Inspections charged with enforcement of this Ordinance.  
 
The appeal shall be taken within ten thirty days from the service receipt of actual or constructive 
notice of the decision by the Watauga County Office of Planning and Inspections by filing with 
the Watauga County Director of Planning and Inspections a notice of appeal, which shall specify 
the grounds upon which the appeal is based. Upon filing of any notice of appeal, the Watauga 
County Director of Planning and Inspections shall schedule the matter for hearing in accordance 
with the rules of procedure for the Watauga County Board of Adjustment. When an appeal is 
from the decision of the Watauga County Office of Planning and Inspections refusing to allow 
the person aggrieved thereby to do any act, the decision shall remain in force until modified or 
reversed. 
 
When any appeal is from a decision of the Watauga County Office of Planning and Inspections 
requiring the person aggrieved to do any act, the appeal shall have the effect of suspending the 
requirement until the hearing of the Board, unless the Director of the Watauga County Office of 
Planning and Inspections certifies to the Board, after the notice of appeal is filed, that by reason 
of the facts stated in an affidavit the certificate (a copy of which shall be furnished to the 
petitioner) a suspension of the requirement would, in his or her opinion, cause imminent peril to 
life or property or that because the violation charged is transitory in nature, a stay would 
seriously interfere with enforcement of the ordinance. In that case, proceedings shall not be 
stayed except by a restraining order, which may be granted by the Board of Adjustment or by a 
court of record an application upon due notice to the Director of the Watauga County Office of 
Planning and Inspections and in accordance with the requirements of Rule 65 of the North 
Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure.   
 
The Watauga County Board of Adjustments shall have all the powers of the officer from whom 
the appeal is taken. 
 
The Board shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of appeals, shall give due notice to all the 
parties and shall render its decision within forty-five days of the conclusion of the evidence 
presented to it. Any party may appear in person or by agent or by attorney. The Board may 
reverse, affirm, in whole or in part, or may modify the decision or order appealed. The 
concurring vote of four-fifths a majority of the members of the Board shall be necessary to 
reverse or modify any decision or order appealed under this Ordinance.   
 
The Board shall have the power also in passing upon appeals in any case where there are 
practical difficulties or undue unnecessary hardships in the way of carrying out the strict letter of 
this code, to adapt the application of the code to the necessities of the case to the end that the 

091713 BCC Meeting

96



spirit, purpose and intent of the code shall be observed, public safety and welfare is secured, and 
substantial justice done achieved. The concurring vote of four-fifths of the Board shall be 
necessary to grant a variance. 
 
Every quasi-judicial decision of the Board shall be subject to review by proceedings in the nature 
of certiorari instituted in the Watauga County Superior Court within 30 days after the written 
decision of the Board is filed or after a copy thereof is delivered to the appealing party, 
whichever is later.  The decision of the Board may be delivered to the aggrieved party either by 
hand delivery or by any method authorized by the State Rules of Civil Procedure. 

091713 BCC Meeting

97



ORDINANCE TO REGULATE WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS TOWERS IN 
WATAUGA COUNTY 

Original Adoption Date: May 1997 
 

ARTICLE V. APPEALS AND VARIANCES 
 
Appeals and requests for variances shall be taken to the Watauga County Board of Adjustment. 
as established by resolution found in Book of Records 5, page 42. 
 
SECTION A. APPEALS OF ORDINANCE ADMINISTRATOR’S DECISION 
 
An appeal for review of any order, requirement, decision, or determination made by the 
Ordinance Administrator may be made by the applicant a petitioner who has standing to 
challenge the decision being appealed. the Board of Adjustment. Such appeal shall be submitted 
in writing to the Board of Adjustment within ten (10) thirty (30) days of from receipt of actual or 
constructive notice of order, requirement, decision, or determination. The Board shall decide the 
appeal based upon its findings of fact and the intent of the ordinance. The effect of this decision 
shall not be to vary the terms of the ordinance, but rather to interpret it.  
 
SECTION B. VARIANCE REQUEST 
 
A request for a variance shall be submitted by the applicant in writing to the Watauga County 
Board of Adjustment. within ten (10) days of receipt of notice of an adverse decision by the 
Ordinance Administrator. The request shall be accompanied by: 
 
1.  Identification of any variance(s) to the ordinance provision(s) responsible for the alleged 
 hardship. 
 
2. The reason(s) for seeking the variance(s).  
 
3. Any measures conditions that are proposed by the applicant to mitigate possible 
 adverse effects of the proposed ordinance(s) variance(s). 
 
2.  Tax parcel numbers and names of all owners of residential dwellings, day-care 
 centers, and schools within one hundred (100) feet of the tower site property line.  
 
SECTION C. VARIANCE CONDITIONS 
 
The Board may grant a variance upon finding that all of the following conditions exist: 
 
1.  Extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular place or  property in 
question because of its size, shape, topography, or requirement for  towers that are not applicable 
to other tower sites governed by this Ordinance. 
1.  Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance.  It shall not 
be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable use can be made 
of the property.   

091713 BCC Meeting

98



 
2. The variance would not confer upon the applicant any special privileges that are, or would 
be, denied to other operators of towers governed by this Ordinance. 
2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as  location, size, 
or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting 
from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis 
for granting a variance.  
 
3. This Ordinance would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other operators 
of towers governed by this Ordinance. 
3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. The 
act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify the granting 
of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship. 
 
4. The variance will not seriously deter from the purpose and intent of this Ordinance and will 
not be injurious to the neighborhood or to the general welfare. 
4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the ordinance, such 
that public safety is secured and substantial justice is achieved.  
 
5. The special circumstances causing the need for variance(s) are not the fault of the applicant. 
 
6. The variance is necessary for the applicant to achieve operational objectives. 
 
SECTION D. MITIGATING FACTOR(S) 
 
Co-location of facilities and/or stealth technology shall be considered a mitigating factor to a 
variance request and may be justification for the request. 
 
SECTION E. DECISION OF BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 
The Board shall make written findings to support its decision either granting or denying the 
variance. and a copy shall be provided to the applicant. A copy of the Board’s decision shall be 
delivered to the applicant, property owner, and to any person who has submitted a written 
request for a copy prior to the date the decision becomes effective. The Board may attach to any 
variance such conditions as it deems necessary and appropriate. provided that the conditions are 
reasonable related to the variance. A request for a variance under this section shall not constitute 
an admission by the applicant of any findings of fact made by the Ordinance Administrator or a 
waiver of appeal rights provided by Section E. Should the Watauga County Board of Adjustment 
grant the requested variance, the Ordinance Administrator shall issue a tower permit. The permit 
applicant shall acknowledge and agree to permit conditions approved by the Ordinance 
Administrator and Board of Adjustment.  

091713 BCC Meeting

99



WATAUGA COUNTY 
WATERSHED PROTECTION ZONING ORDINANCE 

(Winkler’s Creek, Howards Creek, Norris Branch, Flat Top Branch, South Fork New River) 
Original Adoption Date: December 6, 1993 

& 
WATAUGA COUNTY  

WATERSHED PROTECTION ORDINANCE FOR POND CREEK 
 Original Adoption Date: December 6, 1993 

 
ARTICLE 500:  ADMINISTRATION, ENFORCEMENT AND APPEALS 

 
Section 502.  Appeal from the Watershed Administrator 
 
Any order, requirement, decision or determination made by the Watershed Administrator may be 
appealed to and decided by the Board of Adjustment. 
 
An appeal from a decision of the Watershed Administrator must be submitted to the Board of 
Adjustment by a petitioner with standing within thirty (30) days from the date the receipt of 
actual or constructive notice of the order, interpretation, decision or determination is made.  All 
appeals must be made in writing stating the reasons for appeal.  Following submission of an 
appeal, the Watershed Administrator shall transmit to the Board all papers constituting the record 
upon which the action appealed from was taken. 
 
An appeal stays all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed unless the officer from 
whom the appeal is taken certifies to the Board, after the notice of appeal has been filed with 
him, that by reason of facts stated in the certificate an affidavit, a stay would in his opinion cause 
imminent peril to life or property. In such case, proceedings shall not be stayed otherwise than 
except by a restraining order which may be granted by the Board or by a court of record. on 
application of notice of the officer from whom the appeal is taken and upon due cause shown. 
 
The Board shall fix a reasonable time for hearing the appeal and give notice thereof to the parties 
and shall decide the same within a reasonable time. At the hearing, any party may appear in 
person, by agent or by attorney. 
 
Section 506.  Powers and Duties of the Board of Adjustment. 
 
 (A) Administrative Review. The Board of Adjustment shall hear and decide appeals from 
any decision or determination made by the Watershed Administrator in the enforcement of this 
ordinance. 
 
 (B) Variances.  The Board of Adjustment shall have the power to authorize, in specific 
cases, minor variances from the terms of this Ordinance as will not be contrary to the public 
interests where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of this Ordinance will result in 
practical difficulties or unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit of this Ordinance shall be 
observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done. In addition, the county 

091713 BCC Meeting

100



shall notify and allow a reasonable comment period for all other local governments having 
jurisdiction in the designated watershed where the variance is being considered. 
 
 (1)  Applications for a variance shall be made on the proper form obtainable from the 
 Watershed administrator and shall include the following information: 
 
 (a)  A site plan, drawn to a scale of at least one (1) inch to forty (40) feet, indicating the 
 property lines of the parcel upon which the use is proposed; any existing or proposed 
 structures; parking areas and other built-upon areas; surface water drainage. The site plan 
 shall be neatly drawn and indicate north point, name and address of person who prepared 
 the plan, date of the original drawing, and an accurate record of any later revisions. 
 
 (b)  A complete and detailed description of the proposed variance, together with any 
 other pertinent information which the applicant feels would be helpful to the Board of 
 Adjustment in considering the application. 
 
 (c)  The Watershed Administrator shall notify in writing each local government having 
 jurisdiction in the watershed. Such notice shall include a description of the variance being 
 requested. Local governments receiving notice of the variance request may submit 
 comments to the Watershed Administrator prior to a decision by the Board of 
 Adjustment. Such comments shall become a part of the record of proceedings of the 
 Watershed Review Board. 
 
 (d)  The Board of Adjustment may subpoena witnesses and compel the production of 
 evidence. If a person fails or refuses to obey a subpoena issued pursuant to this 
 subsection, the Board of Adjustment may apply to the General Court of Justice for an 
 order requiring that its order be obeyed, and the court shall have jurisdiction to issue 
 these orders after notice to all proper parties. No testimony of any witness before the 
 board of adjustment pursuant to a subpoena issued in exercise of the power conferred by 
 this subsection may be used against the witness in the trial of any civil or criminal action 
 other than a prosecution for false swearing committed on the examination. Any person 
 who, while under oath during a proceeding before the Board of Adjustment willfully 
 swears falsely, is guilty of a Class 1 misdemeanor. 
 
 (2)  Before the Board may grant a variance, it shall make the following three findings 
 which shall be recorded in the permanent record of the case and shall include the factual 
 reasons on which they are based: 
 
 (a)  There are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in the way of  carrying out 
 the strict letter of the Ordinance. In order to determine that there are practical difficulties 
 or unnecessary hardships, the Board must find that the five following conditions exist: 
   
  (a)  Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the ordinance. It  
  shall not be necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the variance, no reasonable  
  use can be made of the property.   
 

091713 BCC Meeting

101



  
 (1)  If he complies with the provisions of the Ordinance, the applicant can secure no 
 reasonable return from, nor make reasonable use of, his property. Merely proving that the 
 variance would permit a greater profit to be made from the property will not be considered 
 adequate to justify the Board in granting a variance. Moreover, the Board shall consider 
 whether the variance is the minimum possible deviation from the terms of the Ordinance 
 that will make possible the reasonable use of his property. 
  
 (b)  The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as 
 location, size, or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as 
 hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the neighborhood or the general 
 public, may not be the basis for granting a variance.  
 
 (2)  The hardship results from the application of the Ordinance to the property rather than 
 from other factors such as deed restrictions or other hardship. 
 
 (3)  The hardship is due to the physical nature of the applicant's property, such as its size, 
 shape, or topography, which is different from that of neighboring property. 
   
 (c)  The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner. 
 The act of purchasing property with knowledge that circumstances exist that may justify 
 the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created hardship. 
 
 (4)  The hardship is not the result of the actions of an applicant who knowingly or 
 unknowingly violates the Ordinance, or who purchases the property after the effective date 
 of the Ordinance, and then comes to the Board for relief. 
 
  (d)  The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the   
  ordinance, such that public safety is secured and substantial justice is achieved.  
 
 (5)  The hardship is peculiar to the applicant's property, rather than the result of conditions 
 that are widespread. If other properties are equally subject to the hardship created in the 
 restriction, then granting a variance would be a special privilege denied to others, and 
 would not promote equal justice. 
 
 (b)  The variance is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the Ordinance and 
 preserves its spirit. 
 
 (c)  In the granting of the variance, the public safety and welfare have been assured and 
 substantial justice has been done.  The Board shall not grant a variance if it finds that 
 doing so would in any respect impair the public health, safety, or general welfare. 
 
 (3)  In granting the variance, the Board may attach thereto such conditions regarding the 
 location, character, and other features of the proposed building, structure, or use as it may 
 deem advisable in furtherance of the purpose of this ordinance. If a variance for the 

091713 BCC Meeting

102



 construction, alteration or use of property is granted, such construction, alteration or use 
 shall be in accordance with the approved site plan. 
 
 (3) Appropriate conditions may be imposed on any variance, provided that the conditions 
 are reasonably related to the variance. 
 
 (4) The Board of Adjustment shall refuse to hear an appeal or an application for a variance 
 previously denied if it finds that there have been no substantial changes in conditions or 
 circumstances bearing on the appeal or application. 
 
 (5)  A variance issued in accordance with this Section shall be considered a Watershed 
 Protection Permit and shall expire if a Building Permit or Watershed Occupancy Permit for 
 such use is not obtained by the applicant within six (6) months from the date of the 
 decision. 
 
 (4) (6) If the application calls for the granting of a major variance, and if the Board of 
 Adjustment decides in favor of granting the variance, the Board shall prepare a preliminary 
 record of the hearing with all deliberate speed. The preliminary record of the hearing shall 
 include: 
 
 (a)  The variance application; 
 (b)  The hearing notices; 
 (c)  The evidence presented; 
 (d)  Motions, offers of proof, objections to evidence, and rulings on them; 
 (e)  Proposed findings and exceptions; 
  (f)   The proposed decision, including all conditions proposed to be added to   
   the permit. 
 
 The preliminary record shall be sent to the Environmental Management Commission for its 
 review. as follows: 
 
 (a) If the Commission concludes from the preliminary record that the variance qualifies as 
 a major variance and that (1) the property owner can secure no reasonable return from, nor 
 make any practical use of the property unless the proposed variance is granted, and (2) the 
 variance, if granted, will not result in a serious threat to the water supply, then the 
 Commission shall approve the variance as proposed or approve the proposed variance with 
 conditions and stipulations. The Commission shall prepare a Commission decision and 
 send it to the Board of Adjustment. If the Commission approves the variance as proposed, 
 the Board shall prepare a final decision granting the proposed variance. If the Commission 
 approves the variance with conditions and stipulations, the Board shall prepare a final 
 decision, including such conditions and stipulations, granting the proposed variance. 
 
 (b) If the Commission concludes from the preliminary record that the variance qualifies as 
 a major variance and that (1) the property owner can secure a reasonable return from or 
 make a practical use of the property without the variance or (2) the variance, if granted, 
 will result in a serious threat to the water supply, then the Commission shall deny approval 

091713 BCC Meeting

103



 of the variance as proposed. The Commission shall prepare a Commission decision  and 
 send it to the Board of Adjustment. The Board shall prepare a final decision denying the 
 variance as proposed. 

091713 BCC Meeting

104



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

TAX MATTERS  
A. Monthly Collections Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be 
available for questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

105



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

TAX MATTERS  
B. Refunds and Releases 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
Board action is required to accept the Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

106



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Buyer Agency Agreement & Commission Agreement  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Included in your packets is a copy of the Buyer Agency Agreement and Commission Agreement 
related to the sale of the old Watauga High School Property.  The Buyer Agency Agreement is 
between Scott Sullivan and Chip Kassinger (Buyers) and Wright Properties, Elliot Wood, and 
Edward Chapman (the Firm).  The Commission Agreement secures a 5% commission for the 
Firm (Wright Properties, Elliot Wood, and Edward Chapman) in the event that they bring a 
successful offer for the sale of the old high school property. 
 
It is my understanding that the Firm will not bring an offer for sale on the property until the 
Commissioners have approved the Commission Agreement.  The County has not received a 
signed Buyer Agency Agreement for the above parties.  Should the Board desire to approve the 
Commission Agreement, staff would recommend that approval not be given until a signed Buyer 
Agency Agreement has been submitted and a valid offer is presented. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

107



091713 BCC Meeting

108



091713 BCC Meeting

109



091713 BCC Meeting

110



091713 BCC Meeting

111



091713 BCC Meeting

112



091713 BCC Meeting

113



091713 BCC Meeting

114



091713 BCC Meeting

115



091713 BCC Meeting

116



091713 BCC Meeting

117



Blank Page 
 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

118



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Proposed Bethel Convenience Center Lease Agreement 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
The current lease for the Bethel Convenience Center expired in August 2013.  Staff has been 
working with the owners, Barbara Harmon and Roger Harmon, to negotiate a new lease for the 
site.  As the previous agreement was for $200 for twenty (20) years, the Harmon’s requested an 
increase of $400.  Staff was able to negotiate an incremental increase of $300 for the first five (5) 
years; $325 for the second five (5) years; $350 for the third five (5) years; and $375 for the 
fourth and final five (5) years. 
 
The County Attorney has reviewed and approved the lease.  Staff would recommend the Board 
approve the lease as presented with additional funds to come from the retained earnings of the 
solid waste fund if the increase cannot be accommodated within the existing budget or the 
recognition of additional revenues to cover the increased cost. 
 
Board action is required.   
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

119



091713 BCC Meeting

120



091713 BCC Meeting

121



091713 BCC Meeting

122



091713 BCC Meeting

123



091713 BCC Meeting

124



091713 BCC Meeting

125



Blank Page 
 
 

091713 BCC Meeting

126



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Boards & Commissions 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
One ETJ Alternate position remains to be filled on the Town of Boone Board of Adjustment.  
Recommendations have not been received from the Town at this time. 
 
Mr. Gary Childers’ term to the Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute Board 
expired June 30, 2013.  Mr. Childers has expressed his willingness to continue serving if 
reappointed.  This is a second reading and, therefore, action may be taken if so desired. 
 
The Voluntary Farmland Preservation Program Advisory Board recommends the appointment of 
Mr. Andrew Ellis to their Board.  This is a first reading and, therefore, action may be taken if so 
desired. 
 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

127



091713 BCC Meeting

128



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
D. Announcements 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Trustees of Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute has invited the Board to a 
joint meeting on Wednesday, September 18, 2013, at 6:00 P.M. at the Watauga Instructional 
Facility on Hwy 105 Bypass in Room 112. 
 
The Hunger and Health Coalition has invited Board members to “Save the Date” of October 12, 
2013, at 9:00 A.M. to join their First Annual Homecoming Run for Hunger.  The 5K run/walk 
will benefit the Hunger and Health Coalition. 
 
  

091713 BCC Meeting

129



091713 BCC Meeting

130



Homecoming Run for Hunger 5K. View this email in your browser 

Save the Date 
October 12, 2013 at 9:00 AM

 
Join us for the first annual Homecoming Run For Hunger, a 5K run/walk to 

benefit the Hunger and Health Coalition.  Start Homecoming weekend by working up 

a sweat and have plenty of time to get to the 3:30 football game. 

 

There will be door prizes and awards for all age categories.  Teams of three to five 

will get a discount.  Come join us for the fun and help provide food and pharmacy 

assistance to those in our community who cannot afford it. 
 
Register online at www.hungerandhealthcoalition.com 
 
 
 

 

When: October 12, 2013
             8:00AM Registration
             9:00AM Start Pistol
Where: Greenway Trail
              Mayor's Park (Armory) 
              Boone NC

Register Online at 
www.hungerandhealthcoalition.com 
 
Early Registration (before Oct 1) 
$15.00 Individuals 
$40.00 Teams 

Copyright © 2013 The Hunger and Health Coalition, All rights reserved. 
 
 
unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences  
 

Subscribe Past Issues RSSShare Translate

Page 1 of 1Homecoming Run For Hunger

8/12/2013http://us7.campaign‐archive1.com/?u=adc93efc9e3963a760da15955&id=f9ae02fea1&e=c7367...

091713 BCC Meeting

131



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 14: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

091713 BCC Meeting

132


	Agenda 
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the September 17, 2013, Agenda
	Intergovernmental Retreat Discussion
	Sheriff’s Office Matters
	A.  Out-of-State Travel
	B.  Vehicle Bid Requests

	Green Valley Community Park, Inc., Request for Amendments In Tourism Development Authority Grants
	Social Services’ Out-of-State Travel Request
	Request to Apply for a Grant From The Foundation for Rural Service
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the Following:
	A.  Watauga County Library's Request to Name A Meeting Room In Memory of Ms. Evelyn Johnson
	B.  Proposed Amendments to the Ordinance To Regulate Signs in Watauga County
	C.  Proposed Amendments to Planning Ordinances 

	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Proposed Buyer Agency Agreement & Commission Agreement
	B.  Proposed Bethel Conveience Center Lease Agreement
	C.  Boards and Commissions
	D.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



